
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the 

meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public 
except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a 

public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them 

to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the 
ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable 

accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, May 18, 2021 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (GM) 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 

6. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - May 6, 2021 Called Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - May 7, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

7. Appeal of Planning & Zoning Commission decision by Charles B. and Cathy M. Walsh (staff-

CA & P&D) 

8. Approval of FY21 Budget Amendment #1 (staff-Finance) 

9. Authorization for Chairman to sign Lease Agreement for the Scott Road Recycle Center (staff-

CM) 

10. Authorization for Chairman to sign TSPLOST #2 IGA (staff-CM) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
11. County Manager Report 

12. County Attorney Report 

13. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Closing 
14. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

6. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - May 6, 2021 Called Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - May 7, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

2



Draft Work Session Minutes Page 1 of 3  

May 6, 2021   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Work Session 

Minutes 

Thursday, May 6, 2021 ◊ 2:00 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 204 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met for a Work Session on Thursday, May 6, 2021 

at approximately 2:00 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 204, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

Planning & Development Director Lisa Jackson 

Public Works Director Tony Clack 

Shop Foreman Anthony Frazier 

Finance Director Linda Cook 

Public Information Officer Stephanie McMullen 

Buildings & Maintenance Technician Torrey Whittaker 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the work session to order at approximately 2:06 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance (GM) 

Commissioner McElhenney led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3



Draft Work Session Minutes Page 2 of 3  

May 6, 2021   

 

Work Session 
3. TSPLOST #2 Projects (BW) 

Chairman Webster shared GDOT traffic counts on some of Putnam County's busier roads. 

 

County Manager Van Haute gave an update on the turn lane on Dennis Station Road.  The 

engineering is complete, but waiting on the Railroad; project is moving forward.  The project 

will need to be advertised for 30 days and with supplies in short supply, construction time is 

unknown. 

 

The board reviewed the spread sheet of each commissioner's list of proposed roads and the 

commissioners were asked to prioritize their roads. 

 

Public Works Director Clack requested a pavement management software program from iWorks 

that will rate roads and automatically keep up with road conditions.  The cost is $85K for the 

first three years. 

 

No action was taken. 

(Copy of spreadsheet made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

4. ARP Funding (BW) 

Chairman Webster briefly explained the American Rescue Plan.  Finance Director Cook 

distributed a handout with the information she has as of today's date.  She is still waiting to get 

official guidance on the  allowable expenditures and recommends confirming our project list 

with the auditors. 

 

County Manager Van Haute reviewed some project ideas that he has been brainstorming, such 

as: Generators, IT/AV upgrades for the Meeting Room, Roof replacements/Solar Panels, Fire 

Boats, Public Works software, Cell Tower. 

 

Maintenance Technician Whittaker reviewed some project ideas for the courthouse, such as: 

Rolling Cabinets for Clerk of Courts, Windows/Roof repairs, Restore or replace tile, Complete 

installation of LED lights, Update Video Surveillance. 

 

Chairman Webster asked the staff and commissioners to keep thinking about ideas. 

 

No action was taken. 

(Copy of handout made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



Draft Work Session Minutes Page 3 of 3  

May 6, 2021   

 

Closing 
5. Adjournment 

Chairman Webster adjourned the work session at approximately 3:53 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

5



Draft Minutes Page 1 of 4  

May 7, 2021   

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, May 7, 2021 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, May 7, 2021 at approximately 9:00 

AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, 

Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Gary McElhenney 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Jeff Wooten 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Barry Fleming 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 9:00 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner McElhenney. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

3. Invocation - Rev. Avis Williams 

Rev. Avis Williams gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (GM) 

Commissioner McElhenney led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

6



Draft Minutes Page 2 of 4  

May 7, 2021   

 

Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 

Ms. Allison Anderson and Mr. Randy Mason spoke in support of the golf course and asked for it 

to stay open. 

Mr. Buddy Nolan commented on civics and that Putnam County is a representative form of 

government.  He asked the board to not submit to recent attacks on the county attorney.  He has 

experience in local government law which is what is needed. 

 

6. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - April 20, 2021 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - April 20, 2021 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of Minutes - April 21, 2021 Called Meeting (staff-CC) 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner McElhenney, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 
 

7. Awarding of Solicitation 21-42001-001 LMIG Asphaltic Concrete Resurfacing and Striping 

(staff-CM) 

County Manager Van Haute reviewed the bids and recommended the low bidder, Garrett Paving 

Company, at $953,325.71. 

Motion to award Solicitation 21-42001-001 LMIG Asphaltic Concrete Resurfacing and 

Striping to Garrett Paving Company at $953,325.71. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of contract made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

8. Authorization for Chairman to sign Technical Assistance Letter to the Middle Georgia 

Regional Commission requesting assistance with updating the Putnam County Personnel 

Manual (BW) 

Chairman Webster advised that the Personnel Manual hasn't been fully updated in a number of 

years. 

Motion to authorize the chairman to sign a Technical Assistance letter to the Middle 

Georgia Regional Commission requesting assistance with updating the Putnam County 

Personnel Manual. 

Motion made by Commissioner Wooten, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

(Copy of letter made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

 

 

 

 

7



Draft Minutes Page 3 of 4  

May 7, 2021   

 

9. Discussion of Uncle Remus Golf Course Operations (staff-CM) 

County Manager Van Haute advised that eight days ago the Uncle Remus Golf Course Director, 

Ricky Duvall, resigned and today is last day.  In addition, Golf Shop Attendant, David Frye also 

resigned as of May 2.  The golf course has always lost money each year, but had been 

improving.  Staff has been small to help mitigate the losses.  Mr. Duvall knew how to do it all 

and was very dedicated and put in tons of hours.  County Manager Van Haute further advised 

that it took months to hire Mr. Duvall when the director before him left; this is not a position that 

can be filled in eight days, which is the reason for the current closure of the golf course.  He also 

noted that if the greens aren't kept up, it won't take long for the course to ruin.  There are lots of 

options before the board at this time, such as: lease it, run it, sell it, add it to the Recreation 

Department, etc.  He requested guidance from the board.  He also advised that employment is 

down county-wide with 13 fulltime vacancies and over 20 part-time vacancies. 

 

Commissioner Wooten commented that he grew up with the golf course and would hate to see 

the county lose it. 

 

Commissioner Sharp commented that he is in favor of keeping the golf course and has received 

several phone calls asking to keep it open.  He asked if volunteers could be utilized to keep it 

going and asked if any of the golfers present have any contacts for someone we can hire.  He also 

asked if Hotel/Motel funds could be used to help with any costs of the golf course since it is a 

tourist attraction. 

 

Commissioner Brown commented that the high dollar golf courses are getting all the qualified 

people. He advised that he has no problems with golf course and knows that lots of people enjoy 

it and use it.  He would like to see us get with the City of Eatonton and the Development 

Authority for ideas to generate more income in order to pay people and get upgrades to the 

course.  He commented that he is open to suggestions but would like to find a way to maintain it 

until we come up with direction. 

 

Commissioner McElhenney commented that the golf course has been here a long time and he is 

in favor of keeping it.  He knows it will be tough to find somebody to take over and that we 

should concentrate on looking for people right now. 

 

Chairman Webster commented that finding people is the main driver right now and maintaining 

the  greens will be the biggest challenge.  He summarized that it seems to be the sense of the 

board to keep the golf course in operation and to find a way to keep it open at least a few days a 

week.  The County Manager was tasked to put it back in operation and keep it in operation. 

 

No official action was taken. 

 

Reports/Announcements 
10. County Manager Report 

No report. 

 

11. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

8



Draft Minutes Page 4 of 4  

May 7, 2021   

 

 

12. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner McElhenney: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Sharp: none 

 

Commissioner Wooten: none 

 

Chairman Webster: none 

 

Closing 
13. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Wooten. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner McElhenney, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Wooten 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 9:47 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

9



File Attachments for Item:

7. Appeal of Planning & Zoning Commission decision by Charles B. and Cathy M. Walsh (staff-CA & P&D)

10



4-16-2021
5-6-2021N/A

11

lbarb_000
Received



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



File Attachments for Item:

8. Approval of FY21 Budget Amendment #1 (staff-Finance)

21



 2021 BUDGET AMENDMENT #1

Increase (Decrease) 

to Current Budget Total

General Fund Revenues:

Taxes: 1,225,000 

Title Ad Valorem Tax 225,000 

Local Option Sales Tax 1,000,000 

Intergovernmental: (120,000)

Grant - Transit (45,000)

Grant - Miscellaneous (75,000)

Charges for Services: 25,000 

Clerk's Image Income 25,000 

Interest & Miscellaneous: 129,252 

Interest Earned 65,000 

Rental Income 2,100 

Reimb - Damaged Property 40,700 

Miscellaneous Revenue 6,000 

Sale of Assets 12,151 

Donations 3,301 

Appropriation from Fund Balance (495,282)

            Total General Fund Revenue Adjustment 763,970

General Fund Expenditures:

Executive Officers 8,926

Clerk of Superior Court & Image Account 25,000

Magistrate Court 17,000

Fire Stations & Rescue 44,500

Putnam General Hospital 300,000

Putnam Development Authority 300

            Total General Fund Expenditure Adjustment 395,726

1 of 2

22



 2021 BUDGET AMENDMENT #1

Special Service District Revenues:

Taxes: 111,190 

Intangible Tax 3,000 

Franchise Taxes 20,000 

Alcoholic Beverage Tax 25,000 

Insurance Premium Tax 63,190 

License & Permits: 230,200

Business License 12,200

Building Permit - County 212,000

EPD Permits 6,000

Interest & Miscellaneous 15,000

Other Financing Sources (30,338)

           Total Special Service District Revenue Adjustment 326,052

Special Service District Expenditures:

Animal Services 24,865

Recyclables Collections 284,000

            Total Special Service District Expenditure Adjustment 308,865

2 of 2

23



File Attachments for Item:

9. Authorization for Chairman to sign Lease Agreement for the Scott Road Recycle Center (staff-CM)

24



25



26



File Attachments for Item:

10. Authorization for Chairman to sign TSPLOST #2 IGA (staff-CM)

27



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT, (this “Agreement”) is made and 

entered into as of the ___  day of _______________, 2021, by and between PUTNAM COUNTY, 

GEORGIA, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia (the “County”), and the CITY OF 

EATONTON, GEORGIA, a municipal corporation of the State of Georgia (the “City”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 

WHEREAS, the above referenced parties have agreed, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 48-8-260, 

et al., to implement a Special District Mass Transportation Sales and Use Tax (“SDMTST”) within 

the special tax district created by O.C.G.A. § 48-8-261 and conterminous with the geographical 

boundary of Putnam County; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-8-262, a meeting was held at the Putnam 

County Administrative Offices on April 6, 2021 between the Board of Commissioners of Putnam 

County and the City Council of Eatonton; and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-8-262, the County mailed written notice of 

such meeting to the mayor of the City; and  

 

WHEREAS, the County desires to submit the question of whether the SDMTST should be 

considered by the electors of the special district at the next scheduled election. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and undertakings as 

hereinafter set forth and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which are hereby acknowledged, the County and the City do hereby agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE 1. 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Agreement shall become effective upon its execution and shall continue in effect until 

the rejection by the electors of the special district of the imposition of the SDMTST or the 

termination of the proposed SDMTST, whichever occurs first. 

 

ARTICLE 2. 

 

RATE OF TAX & TERM 

The City and County agree the rate of the tax shall be 1 percent and shall be levied for 5 

years. 

 

 

 

28



- 2 - 

ARTICLE 3. 

PROJECTS AND PURPOSES QUALIFYING AS TRANSPORATION PURPOSES 
 

 (a) The parties agree Exhibit A to this Agreement represents the list of projects and 

purposes qualifying as transportation purposes proposed to be funded by the SDMTST, which 

includes expenditures of at least 30 percent of the estimated revenue from the tax on projects 

consistent with the state-wide strategic transportation plan as defined in paragraph (6) of 

subsection (a) of O.C.G.A. § 32-2-22. 

 

 (b) The parties agree Exhibit A provides and includes the estimated or projected dollar 

amounts allocated for each transportation purpose from the SDMTST.  

 

(c) The parties agree the order in which the projects and purposes listed in Exhibit A 

shall represent the priority or order in which those projects and purposes will be fully or partially 

funded. 

 

 (d) The parties agree that all transportation purposes included in the agreement shall 

be funded from proceeds from the tax except as otherwise agreed. 

 

ARTICLE 4. 

DISTRIBUTION AND MAINTENANCE OF TAX PROCEEDS 

 

 (a) Upon receipt by the County of SDMTST proceeds collected by the State 

Department of Revenue, the County shall immediately deposit said proceeds in the SDMTST 

Fund.  The monies in the SDMTST Fund shall be held and applied to the cost of acquiring, 

constructing and installing the purposes and projects listed in Exhibit A.  The County, following 

deposit of the SDMTST proceeds in the SDMTST Fund, shall within 10 business days, disburse 

25% of the SDMTST proceeds to the City for use in accordance with the priority of City projects 

as established in Exhibit "A." 

 

 (b) The parties agree that any proceeds from the SDMTST received by the parties shall 

be maintained in separate accounts and utilized exclusively for the purposes specified in this 

Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE 5. 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

(a) Any controversy arising under this Agreement shall be heard before the Superior 

Court of Putnam County.  Any party seeking to enforce this Agreement shall be entitled to 

reasonable costs and attorney’s fees related to the enforcement of the obligations of this 

Agreement. 

 

29



- 3 - 

(b) Should any phrase, clause, sentence or paragraph herein contained be held invalid 

or unconstitutional, it shall in nowise affect the remaining provisions of this Agreement, which 

said provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

(c) This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an 

original but all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

(d) This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Georgia. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, acting by and through their duly authorized 

officers, have caused this Agreement to be executed in multiple counterparts under seals as of the 

day and year first above written. 

 

 

CITY OF EATONTON, GEORGIA 

 

 

 

By:  

John Reid, Mayor 

 

(SEAL) 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

  

Clerk 

 

 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

By:  

Billy Webster, Chairman 

(SEAL) 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

  

Clerk 

30



EXHIBIT A 
 

COUNTY PROJECTS 
 
 

Resurfacing / Safety Improvements  $15,000,000 
 
Right of Way Maintenance    $     375,000 
 
Intersection Improvements    $  3,000,000 
 
Total County Projects  $18,375,000 
 
 

CITY PROJECTS 
 
 

Resurfacing / Safety Improvements    $5,125,000 
 
Right of Way Maintenance / Drainage Improvements $   500,000 
 
Pedestrian Facility / Intersection Improvements  $   500,000 
 
Total City Projects  $6,125,000 

31


	Top
	Item #6.	2021-05-18 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 05-06-21 BOC Work Session Minutes
	DRAFT 05-07-21 BOC Minutes

	Item #7.	2021-05-18 BOC Walsh Appeal
	Appeal-Walsh
	Appeal-Walsh-168 Riverview Road Packet_Redacted

	Item #8.	2021-05-18 BOC Budget Amendment
	2021 Budget Amendment #1

	Item #9.	2021-05-18 BOC Recycle Center Lease
	Recycle Center Lease

	Item #10.	2021-05-18 BOC TSPLOST #2 IGA
	TSPLOST #2-IGA with City
	TSPLOST #2 EXHIBIT A

	Bottom

